
 

 

Agenda - Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, 

Chwaraeon, a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 2, Y Senedd 

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 1 Chwefror 2024 

Amser: 09.30 – 12.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Lleu Williams, Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddDiwylliant@senedd.cymru

Hydrid 
------ 

Cofrestru cyn y cyfarfod  

(09.15 - 09.30) 

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.30)   

 

2 Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad: sesiwn dystiolaeth gydag 

Undeb Rygbi Cymru (1) 

(09.30 - 10.30) (Tudalennau 1 - 27)  

  Abi Tierney, Prif Swyddog Gweithredol, Undeb Rygbi Cymru 

  Nigel Walker, Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol Rygbi, Undeb Rygbi Cymru 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

  Briff ymchwil: Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad 

  Nodyn cyngor cyfreithiol: Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad 

  Tystiolaeth gan yr Uned Rygbu Cymru: Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe 

Gwlad (Saesneg yn unig) 

  Tystiolaeth gan Six Nations Rugby Limited: Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r 

Chwe Gwlad (Saesneg yn unig) 

  Tystiolaeth gan y Gymdeithas Darlledwyr Masnachol a Gwasanaethau 

Ar Alw (COBA): Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad (Saesneg yn unig) 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

Egwyl  

(10.30 - 10.40) 

 

3 Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad: sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda 

rhanddeiliaid eraill (2) 

(10.40 - 11.40)   

  Dave Chapman, Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol yng Nghymru, UK Hospitality 

  Huw Llewellyn Davies, cyn sylwebydd rygbi BBC Cymru Wales  

  Professor Richard Haynes, Cyfathrebu, y Cyfryngau a Diwylliant, 

Prifysgol Stirling 

  Seimon Williams, Awdur 'Welsh Rugby: What Went Wrong' 

 

4 Papurau i'w nodi 

(11.40)   

 

4.1 Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25 

 (Tudalennau 28 - 37)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

  Llythyr at Ddirprwy Weinidog y Celfyddydau, Chwaraeon a Thwristiaeth 

gan Sefydliad Ymchwil Ystadau Cymru: Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth 

Cymru 2024-25 - 25 Ionawr 2024 (Saesneg yn unig) 

  Ymateb gan y Prif Weinidog: Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-

25 - 25 Ionawr 2024 

  Ymateb gan Gweinidog y Gymraeg ac Addysg: Cyllideb Ddrafft 

Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25 - 25 Ionawr 2024 

  Ymateb gan Weinidog yr Economi a Dirprwy Weinidog y Celfyddydau, 

Chwaraeon a Thwristiaeth - 29 Ionawr 2024 (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

 

 



 

 

4.2 Cyhuddiadau yn ymwneud ag Undeb Rygbi Cymru 

 (Tudalennau 38 - 56)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

  Ymateb gan Undeb Rygbi Cymru i Sport Resolutions: Adolygiad 

annibynnol o Undeb Rygbi Cymru: Cyhuddiadau yn ymwneud ag Undeb 

Rygbi Cymru - Ionawr 2024 (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod hwn 

(11.40)   

 

Egwyl  

(11.40 - 11.50) 

 

6 Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad: trafod y dystiolaeth 

(11.50 - 12.15)   

 

7 Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25: trafod yr adroddiad 

drafft 

(12.15 - 12.30) (Tudalennau 57 - 93)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

  Adroddiad ddrafft: Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar 

gyfer 2024-25 - 2 Chwefror 2024 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vii o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 15

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vii o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



26 January 2024 

F.A.O. Lleu Williams 
Clerk 
Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, Sport, International Relations Committee 
Welsh Parliament 
Via email:  SeneddCulture@senedd.wales 

Dear Lleu Williams 

With gratitude for the opportunity to consult on this subject, we can confirm our continued 
belief that the current listed sports regime is the one most suitable for Welsh rugby.  

We would strongly guard against moving Six Nations Rugby Championship broadcast rights 
from Group B to the Group A list of sporting events of “national interest” as nominated by 
the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport. 

Our primary motivation for making this recommendation is to maintain the balance which 
currently exists in the broadcasting ecosystem.  One which currently retains the interest of 
all potential broadcast partners in a competitive process. 

Put simply, the negative financial implications of moving international rugby matches in the 
Six Nations Rugby Championship to the protected list could have a devastating impact on 
the whole of the game in Wales in the medium and long term. 

Of course, Welsh rugby holds a unique and special place in our national culture. We are the 
governing body for the game, and we know its true ownership lies throughout the nation.  
This is a great strength and it brings with it a keenly felt responsibility to ensure that the 
game remains accessible to its people.  

But we also have responsibility to ensure that both the professional and community games 
in Wales are sustainable.   

As illustrated in our latest Annual Report for the year ending 2023 (which can be found here 
https://community.wru.wales/cy/the-wru/reports/ ), 65% of the annual turnover of the 
Welsh Rugby Union Group is derived from staging international matches at Principality 
Stadium featuring Wales teams and the commercial activities associated with these teams. 
Coverage of our matches and the corresponding profile of our teams obviously directly 
influences this commercial activity.  

More directly, international broadcast turnover last year amounted to £17.3m in a year 
when the WRU Group’s turnover, excluding URC/ECPR income, was £93.6m.  Over the last 
five years 26% of the Union’s income has been provided by broadcast rights. 

Tudalen y pecyn 18

https://community.wru.wales/cy/the-wru/reports/


 

It is vitally important to understand how delicately balanced the Welsh rugby ecosystem is 
and how reliant it is on the commercial value associated with the fixtures the Committee is 
discussing.  
 
All the profits made by the WRU Group are fed back into the game in Wales. We have a 
stated policy of maximum reinvestment into the game annually, rather than retaining 
profits. We have been able to increase our investment in Welsh rugby by £2.4m, up to 
£65.3m this year. 
 
The health of Welsh rugby relies heavily upon the income generated by its media rights. This 
funding fuels the investment in the development and grassroots areas of the game and 
therefore its long-term sustainability. 
 
Our position is not that Six Nations Championship rugby should be moved away from free-
to-air television channels.  It is that to place this restriction on rugby would artificially 
restrict the market for our media rights and significantly diminish our earning potential to 
devastating effect on our game. 
  
We need to retain the option to broadcast on subscription services, in order to keep the 
existing tension in the market. Of course, we do not wish to diminish the reach of our game.  
To the contrary, we need and want to be seen, but there is a balance to be struck.  
 
The Six Nations Championship has remained on domestic television screens since its 
inception, not because the unions involved have been compelled to do so but because the 
tension in the market has resulted in the market delivering a fair price.  
    
There is obviously a balance, for our partners and sponsors and also for us as a governing 
body intent on driving increased participation in our game, between visibility and access to 
our senior international matches and the direct value attributable to their broadcast.  
 
The point to emphasise is that it is the WRU and Six Nations Rugby which is best placed to 
strike this balance and that it is, self-evidently, in our own best interests to do so.  
 
We have already significantly diversified the way in which we communicate with our 
supporters, in accordance with the fast-changing ways in which they consume their media.  
We are already changing and we are doing so in the best interests of our game, with all 
factors considered, so that we remain both accessible and relevant.  
 
The provision of Welsh language broadcast is also a central part of the WRU’s contribution 
to media rights negotiations and always will be. The Welsh language is part of the cultural 
identity of the game in Wales and its provision is important to our brand, our commercial 
success and our heritage as the governing body of our game. We will continue to do our 
utmost to ensure there is Welsh Language coverage of our matches.   

Tudalen y pecyn 19



 

In conclusion, we ask the Committee to consider that the position of the WRU Group on this 
subject is closely aligned to that of Six Nations Rugby: that an open and competitive process 
is critical to driving fair market value, which in turn enables us to make a balanced decision 
and deliver the best combination of audience reach to grow the sport, to maintain high 
quality coverage to engage rugby fans and to create a fair financial return to reinvest into 
the game.  
 
A broadcast invitation to tender will be issued in the UK later this year for our competitions 
from the 2026 season onwards, by Six Nations Rugby. It will ensure, as with previous Six 
Nations Rugby tender processes, that all principal broadcasters (Free To Air and Pay) will 
have the opportunity to respond. For the benefit of doubt, the opportunity will be made 
available to UK FTA broadcasters through this process to acquire all or some of the Six 
Nations Rugby Championships (Men’s and Women’s). 
 
An open and competitive process is critical to driving fair market value, which in turn 
enables a balanced decision to deliver the best combination of audience reach to grow the 
sport, high quality coverage to engage rugby fans and fair financial return to reinvest into 
the game. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Abi Tierney 
WRU Group CEO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



Six Nations Rugby Limited, Thomas House, 84 Eccleston Square, 6th Floor, Pimlico, London, SW1V 1PX 
Ph:  +353 (0)1 669 0950   Fax:  +353 (0)1 669 0957   

PRIVATE
By email only 

Mr Lleu Williams 
Clerk - Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, Sport, and International 
Relations Committee 
Welsh Parliament 

25 January 2024 

Dear Mr Williams, 

Thank you for your correspondence dated 19th December 2023 and invitation to 
discuss broadcast coverage of the Men’s and Women’s Six Nations Championships in 
the UK, and specifically in Wales. 

Firstly, we feel it is important to provide some background and context about Six 
Nations Rugby Limited’s (“SNRL”) role and responsibilities operating on behalf of and 
in partnership with each of its six member unions, including the WRU. 

In 2020, the six unions agreed for all of their home international rugby media rights to 
be consolidated in order for SNRL to represent them on a centralised basis. These 
rights now include the men’s Autumn International fixtures (currently the “Autumn 
Nations Series”) and certain other international rugby matches as well as the annual 
Six Nations Championships (itself encompassing the men’s, women’s and age-group 
tournaments).  

The rationale behind this is to provide a streamlined calendar and more exciting 
competition formats for rugby and sports fans of all ages. Within this media strategy, 
striking the right balance between reach and revenue generation (essential for our 
unions to reinvest across all areas of the game in their respective countries) is our core 
principle. 

When considering audience reach today, it is important to consider the enormous 
changes in how fans now consume and enjoy rugby. This now spans live, highlights, 
clips, docuseries, surround programming, archive, podcasts and other audio to name 
a few, much of which is available free to view/access across various platforms including 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



social media. In 2023, social media video views of Six Nations content globally neared 
800 million. 

A Deloitte report in 20231 points to the changing consumption habits of younger 
sports fans, where 90% of Gen Z fans use social media to consume sports content. In 
Wales alone, total social media use relating to the Six Nations Championships in 2023 
increased 17 percentage points year-on-year2, driven by short-form content across 
various digital and social platforms - half of fans engaged in second screen behaviour 
whilst watching a Six Nations match. 

We are increasingly working with our unions to reach new audiences by meeting them 
where they choose to consume content. For example, we have recently launched a 
behind-the-scenes Netflix series (“Six Nations: Full Contact”), revamped our fantasy 
gaming proposition and increased media exposure activity (i.e. digital creators, 
influencers and enhanced press access).  

Broadcast rights represent the largest share of WRU income. 

Based on WRU’s 2022 financial statements, 67% of annual turnover was reinvested in 
the game. This funding fuels the investment in the development and grassroots 
areas and therefore rugby’s long-term sustainability.  

Broadcast rights for national team matches typically contribute the largest singular 
revenue line item in the accounts, averaging 26% of annual revenue over the last 5 
years. Any change to that will impact directly on the health of Welsh rugby.  

SNRL intends to issue a broadcast invitation to tender (“ITT”) in the UK in the next 15 
months for our competitions from the 2026 season onwards. It will ensure, as with 
previous Six Nations Rugby tender processes, that all principal broadcasters (Free-To-
Air ("FTA") and Pay) will have the opportunity to respond. 

SNRL has a duty to the WRU and each of its unions to ensure the optimal balance of 
promoting the game to a broader audience, driving audience reach and unlocking the 
revenue generation opportunities that become achievable by way of creating 
competitive tension for these broadcast rights. 

For the benefit of doubt, there is no scenario whereby UK FTA broadcasters will not 
have the opportunity through the process to acquire all or some of the Six Nations 
Rugby Championships (men’s and women’s).  

1 https://www2.deloitte.com/us/en/insights/industry/media-and-entertainment/immersive-sports-
fandom.html 
2 Nielsen consumer research report, Six Nations 2023

Tudalen y pecyn 22



An open and competitive process is critical to driving fair market value, which in turn 
enables SNRL to make a balanced decision and deliver the best combination of 
audience reach to grow the sport, high quality coverage to engage rugby fans and fair 
financial return to reinvest into the game.  

The decision that follows the ITT process will involve rigorous and transparent 
consultation with each of our unions as custodians for the sport in their countries and 
independent SNRL Board members, conscious of the relevance of any decision that is 
made on the sporting community as a whole.  

Yours sincerely, 

Tom Harrison 
CEO, Six Nations Rugby Limited 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



Listed Sports Regime Inquiry 

Response from COBA to the Culture, 

Communications, Welsh Language, 

Sport, and International Relations 

Committee 

January 2024 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 24



COBA submission on listed sports regime 

__________________________________________________________ 

 

2 

 

Introduction 

 

1. COBA is the Association for Commercial Broadcasters and On-Demand 

Services. It represents multichannel broadcasters and on-demand services.  

2. COBA members operate a wide variety of services, offering news, factual, 

children’s, drama, music, arts, entertainment, sports and comedy. Their 

content is available on free-to-air and pay-TV platforms, as well as on-demand. 

3. COBA members are arguably the fastest growing part of the UK television 

industry, and are increasing their investment in jobs, UK content and 

infrastructure. They make this investment without support from the licence fee 

or indirect support from statutory prominence. 

4. For further information please contact Adam Minns, COBA’s Executive 

Director, at adam@coba.org.uk. 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 25

mailto:adam@coba.org.uk


COBA submission on listed sports regime 

__________________________________________________________ 

 

3 

 

1. COBA members play an important role in bringing sporting events to a wide 

audience. Warner Bros. Discovery, Sky, Amazon Prime Video and others have 

often made major non-listed events free at point of access, including partnering 

with PSBs themselves. For example, Prime Video partnered with Channel 4 for 

the US Open Final to offer a simulcast. In some cases, these non PSB services 

are able to offer events to a wider audience free at point of access than PSBs’ 

comparable services. For example, Sky’s Youtube channel is free at point of use 

and has more subscribers than ITV’s online service. 

 

2. The resulting competition for IP rights to sporting events is crucial for 

investment in grassroots sports. Sky, for example, has been a long-standing 

partner of the England and Wales Cricket Board (ECB), with exclusive rights to 

many matches. This long-term partnership has helped support strong growth 

in turnover for the ECB, and a substantial increase in the body’s investment in 

grassroots cricket, which is now worth £44m a year, double the comparable 

amount ten years ago. For its part, Prime Video recently donated £1m to 

women’s tennis. 

 

3. We therefore urge policymakers to encourage competition to bring sports 

events to viewers. We of course note this must be balanced with making events 

available to as wide as possible audience, but this is not necessarily mutually 

exclusive. As we have mentioned, non PSBs have repeatedly demonstrated they 

can successfully show events free at point of access, as well as via their pay 

services.  

 

4. Crucially, the Media Bill will end such competition for listed events by 

prohibiting any service that is not a PSB from showing a listed event even if that 

service is free and widely available. We therefore ask policymakers to exercise 

caution when considering recommending that further events be added to the 

listed regime, especially if the sports in question need investment in order to 

compete with other sports or countries, or to strengthen their grassroots 

activities. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



COBA submission on listed sports regime 

__________________________________________________________ 

 

4 

 

5. Beyond sport, we wish to note the vital role of non PSB players in Wales. Thanks 

to a mixed ecology of non PSBs and PSBs, high-end TV spend in Wales has 

grown from £31m pa in 2017 to £71m in 2019, making the nation one of the 

fastest growth areas within the UK screen sector. Over this period, the Welsh 

screen sector’s GVA has doubled (up to £63m pa, or £108m with value chain 

impacts included). Employment in the Welsh screen sector has also doubled, 

with 1,200 people now employed in the sector. 

 

6. This success story has been driven by a wide range of players, from PSBs such 

as the BBC’s Dr Who series to many non PSBs. For example, the HBO-BBC co-

production His Dark Materials is now in season three, while Sky has shot 

returning series Britannia; season two of I Hate Suzie, starring Billy Piper, with 

HBO; and A Discovery of Witches, with another COBA member, AMC 

Networks. Willow, a Disney+ original series, filmed at Dragon Studios in 

Llanilid, while HBO has partnered with the BBC on Bad Wolf’s Industry for a 

second season. Crucially, such investment is often sustained over multiple 

series, allowing a creative cluster to form in the area.  

Tudalen y pecyn 27



SEFYDLIAD YMCHWIL YSTADAU CYMRU 
INSTITUTE FOR THE STUDY OF WELSH ESTATES 
 
 
Dawn Bowden 
Deputy Minister for Arts, Sport & Tourism 
Welsh Government 
Cardiff 
CF99 1SN 
Email: Dawn.Bowden@gov.wales 
 
 

Thursday, 25th January 2024 
Dear Deputy Minister, 
 
RE: PROPOSED BUDGET CUTS TO THE ROYAL COMMISSION ON THE ANCIENT AND 
HISTORICAL MONUMENTS OF WALES (RCAHMW) 
 
I am writing on behalf of the Institute for the Study of Welsh Estates at Bangor University to 
express our significant concerns regarding the cuts to Welsh heritage and historic 
environment bodies proposed in the Welsh Government’s Draft Budget for 2024/25. 
 
Whilst we recognise the extremely challenging budgetary environment conditioning the 
Welsh Government’s spending, we feel obligated to highlight the immense damage that the 
proposed cuts to the funding of national heritage bodies will inflict on the cultural and 
intellectual life of Wales. 
 
The Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Wales (RCAHMW), 
National Library of Wales, Amgueddfa Cymru and Cadw, collectively and individually, play an 
essential role as leaders of the Welsh heritage sector, supporting and facilitating an 
incredible diversity of activities, initiatives and resources which underpin the cultural 
vibrancy of our nation and our ability to make sense of our communities, identities, 
environment and place in today’s world.  Fundamentally, they are a vital part of the fabric of 
modern Wales, and should be fully resourced to deliver on the positive long-term 
contributions they make towards our civic life, wellbeing and future sustainability.  The 
proposed cuts will dramatically reduce their capacity to act as important enablers of the 
Welsh Government’s Wellbeing Goals. 
 
We are especially concerned about the proposed 22% cut the budget of RCAHMW.  If this 
reduction materialises it will unavoidably necessitate staff redundancies that will make the 
future operation of the organisation unsustainable.  In effect, the Draft Budget is signalling 
the destruction of RCAHMW.  This would be a devastating blow to the Welsh heritage sector. 
 
RCAHMW has been an important part of the cultural and intellectual life of Wales for 
generations, and continues to play a leading role in building knowledge and understanding of 
our incredible historic environment, right across Wales, for local communities and 
international audiences.  Having worked closely with the brilliant team at RCAHMW, we 
cannot fail to be impressed by the levels of expertise, commitment and innovation residing 
within the organisation.  The National Monuments Record of Wales (accessed via Coflein) is 
an important public resource for the people of Wales, which requires continual development 
and modification by the RCAHMW team.  In the sphere of digital heritage generally, 
RCAHMW is recognised an international leader, a status which allows the organisation to 
play an important role in showcasing the heritage of Wales to global audiences.  The unique 
expertise residing in the organisation had proved to be of immense benefit to Welsh 
Universities.  Partnership and collaboration with RCAHMW has underpinned several 
successful grant applications to UK and European funding bodies, thereby bringing funding 
into Welsh Universities and enabling innovation in research and public engagement.  Our 
own AHRC-funded ‘Deep Mapping’ project (£0.25 million) was completely reliant on 
RCAHMW participation.  All of this is at risk if the proposed cuts are allowed to materialise. 

 
Cyfarwyddwr | Director: 

 
Dr. Shaun Evans 

 
 

Bwrdd Ymgynghorol | 
Advisory Board: 

 
Cadeirydd | Chair:  

Yr Athro | Prof. Robin Grove-White  
 

Yr Athro | Prof. Terence Dooley 
Dr. Raj Parry Jones 

Sir David T. R. Lewis 
Mr. Thomas Lloyd OBE, DL, FSA 

Sir George Meyrick Bt. 
Mr. Michael Tree 

Mr. Einion Wyn Thomas 
Dr. Helen Williams-Ellis 

 
Ex Officio: 

Yr Athro | Prof. Peter Shapely 
 

 
 

 
#ISWE 

 
Prifysgol Bangor 
Bangor, Gwynedd 

LL57 2DG 
 

Bangor University 
Bangor, Gwynedd 

Ll57 2DG 
 
 

iswe@bangor.ac.uk 
 

http://iswe.bangor.ac.uk 
 

Twitter @YstadauCymru 
 

facebook.com/YstadauCymru 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 28

Eitem 4.1



 

                                  
 

 
We therefore urge the Welsh Government to reconsider the proposed cuts Welsh heritage 
and historic environment bodies and recognise the broader significance of these 
organisations to our society, culture and economy.  We hope that the Welsh Government 
will continue to support these organisations, to enable them to deliver positive impacts in 
line with long-term policy objectives.   
 
 
Cofion cynnes, 
 
Dr. Shaun Evans 

 
 
CYFARWYDDWR | DIRECTOR 
 
 
 
 
Ccd. Delyth Jewell MS., Chair of the Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, Sport and International Relations 
Committee (Delyth.Jewell@senedd.Wales) 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



Y Gwir Anrh/Rt Hon Mark Drakeford AS/MS 
Prif Weinidog Cymru/First Minister of Wales 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

                                   Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru 
               Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales  

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
 
Delyth Jewell AS 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon 
a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol 
Senedd Cymru 
 
 
 
 

          25  Ionawr 2024 
 
 
Annwyl Delyth, 
 
Rwy’n ysgrifennu mewn ymateb i’ch llythyr dyddiedig 16 Ionawr ynglŷn â chyllideb ddrafft 
2024–2025 ar gyfer Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol. 
 
Rwyf wedi defnyddio’r dull o ymateb i bob un o’ch cwestiynau yn ei dro ac mae’n bleser 
gennyf eu darparu isod yn Atodiad 1. 
 

Yn gywir, 

 
 

MARK DRAKEFORD 
 
 
 
 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 30

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales


2 

 

ATODIAD 1 
 

• Esboniad o'r anghysondeb o £750,000 a amlinellir. 

• Dadansoddiadau cynhwysfawr o wariant a gynllunnir o fewn y BEL gan gynnwys 
Ymgysylltu Rhyngwladol a Swyddfeydd Rhyngwladol. 

 
Mae'r £750,000 yn ymwneud â chyllid 2023–24 ar gyfer Gweithgareddau'r Rhwydwaith 
Tramor, y cyfeiriwyd ato yn y llythyr gwreiddiol ond wedi'i hepgor o'r cyfrifiadau cryno drwy 
gamgymeriad.   
 
Mae'r cyllid hwn bellach wedi cael ei ychwanegu, ac mae dadansoddiad diwygiedig ar 
draws y BEL isod.  Mae'r gyllideb ar gyfer Gweithrediadau Tramor yn talu am staff a 
chostau sy'n gysylltiedig â'r costau rhedeg uniongyrchol ar gyfer swyddfeydd tramor, felly ni 
ellir lleihau'r rhain.  Rwyf hefyd wedi ymrwymo i gadw'r gyllideb ar gyfer Gweithgareddau'r 
Rhwydwaith Dramor ar £750,000, gan adlewyrchu'r effaith sylweddol y mae'r gyllideb 
gymharol fach hon yn ei chael.  Mae hyn yn golygu mai Ymgysylltu Rhyngwladol yw'r unig 
linell lle y gellir gwneud arbedion. 

 

Ymgysylltu Rhyngwladol £2,658,600 

Gweithrediadau Tramor: gan gynnwys rhent swyddfeydd, 
taliadau platfform FCDO, cyflogau staff ac argostau. 

£4,684,400 

Gweithgareddau'r Rhwydwaith Tramor: gweithgareddau ar 
draws y rhwydwaith cyfan o 21 o swyddfeydd tramor 

£750,000 
 

CYFANSWM £8,093,000 

 

• Gwybodaeth sy'n ymwneud ag allbynnau, canlyniadau, effeithiau a gwerth am 
arian ar gyfer pob maes gwariant o fewn BEL Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol 

 
Fel y cyfeirir ato yn fy llythyr gwreiddiol, mae'r gwaith sy'n gysylltiedig â BEL Cysylltiadau 
Rhyngwladol yn cyfrannu'n uniongyrchol at gyflawni'r Strategaeth Ryngwladol, ynghyd â 
dau ymrwymiad yn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu. Bydd y gwaith yn canolbwyntio ar gyflawni tair 
uchelgais yn y Strategaeth Ryngwladol, sef codi proffil Cymru dramor, tyfu'r economi a 
sefydlu Cymru fel cenedl sy'n gyfrifol yn fyd-eang.  
 
Bydd y gweithgareddau'n cefnogi cysylltiadau â blaenoriaeth a byddwn hefyd yn gyflawni 
gweithgareddau sy'n cael eu datblygu o dan Flwyddyn Cymru yn India. 
 
Oherwydd natur Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol, gall allbynnau a chanlyniadau diriaethol fod yn 
anodd eu cyfrifo a'u mesur. Mae cyhoeddi ein hadroddiad rhwydwaith tramor blynyddol yn un 
o'r dulliau rydym yn eu defnyddio i adrodd ar ein canlyniadau.  

 

• Dyraniadau a chymariaethau â gwariant a gynllunnir ar gyfer 2024–25 yn erbyn 
2023–24 
 

 2023–24  2024–25 

Ymgysylltu Rhyngwladol £2,837,600 £2,658,600 

Gweithrediadau Tramor £4,684,400 £4,684,400 

Gweithgareddau'r 
Rhwydwaith Tramor  

£750,000 £750,000  

Cyfansymiau  £8,272,000 8,093,000 

 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



3 

 

• Gwybodaeth am yr hyn a ymddengys fel cynnydd yn y gyllideb Ymgysylltu 
Rhyngwladol ar gyfer 2024–25, gan gynnwys o ble daeth yr arian hwn, pa 
weithgareddau a chanlyniadau y bydd hyn yn eu cyflawni. 

 
Mae'r ffigurau diwygiedig ar gyfer cyllideb Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol, fel y'i nodwyd uchod, 
yn dangos bod y £750,000 yn ymwneud â Gweithgareddau'r Rhwydwaith Tramor yn hytrach 
nag Ymgysylltu Rhyngwladol.  
 
Yn unol â'r rhesymeg a roddwyd ynghylch y cwestiwn cyntaf, mae'r holl arbedion o 
£290,000 a nodwyd cyn y gyllideb ddrafft wedi dod o linell gyllideb Ymgysylltu Rhyngwladol. 
 

• Eglurhad o’r holl wariant a nodir yn eich tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig, gan gynnwys 
prosiectau fel yr Academi Heddwch. 

 
Rhoddwyd manylion am wariant arfaethedig yn fy llythyr gwreiddiol, yn unol â chyflawni'r 
gyllideb ar gyfer Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol. Bydd manylion y gweithgareddau wedi'u 
cyflawni drwy'r cyllid hwn yn cael eu hamlinellu yn adroddiad blynyddol y Rhwydwaith 
Tramor.   
 
Gall sefyllfaoedd byd-eang sy'n newid olygu bod ffocws ein gwaith a'n cyllid yn newid yn 
ystod y flwyddyn, felly mae angen inni fod yn hyblyg ac yn ymatebol.  
 
Ar hyn o bryd mae partneriaid strategol yn ysgrifennu eu ceisiadau am gyllid yn 2024–25.  
Mae hyn yn cynnwys cyllid i Ganolfan Materion Rhyngwladol Cymru i gyflawni Academi 
Heddwch fel ymrwymiad y Rhaglen Lywodraethu.  Mae hyn wedi'i gynnwys yn llinell gyllideb 
Ymgysylltu Rhyngwladol ac nid oes ganddi linell gyllideb ar wahân. 

 

• Gwybodaeth am sut rydych chi wedi blaenoriaethu eich gwariant gan gynnwys pa 
arbedion rydych chi wedi'u canfod (a'r rhesymeg dros wneud hynny). 

 
Rydym wedi blaenoriaethu gwariant, ac felly arbedion, yn seiliedig ar yr hyn yr ydym wedi 
bwriadu ei gyflawni o fewn y Strategaeth Ryngwladol a'r ymrwymiadau yn y Rhaglen 
Lywodraethu. 
 
Cynhaliodd swyddogion Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol archwiliad manwl o ofynion y gyllideb ar 
gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2024–25, a nodwyd arbedion gwerth £290,000 yn ogystal â'r 
gostyngiad parhaus o £171,000 y cytunwyd arno eisoes.  Arweiniodd hyn at y gyllideb 
newydd o £8.093 miliwn.  Fel y nodwyd yn gynharach, mae'r gyllideb ar gyfer 
Gweithrediadau Tramor yn talu am gostau staff ac mae swyddfeydd tramor yn gostau 
sefydlog na ellir eu lleihau.  Felly, rwyf wedi canolbwyntio arbedion ar Ymgysylltu 
Rhyngwladol o ystyried natur y gyllideb ar gyfer Gweithrediadau Tramor, ac ystyried effaith 
y gwaith a'r gweithgareddau a gyflawnir gan ddefnyddio cyllideb gymharol fach ar gyfer 
Gweithgareddau'r Rhwydwaith Tramor.  
 

• Amlinelliad o heriau pellach posibl a blaenoriaethau y gallai fod angen ichi eu 
gwneud yn y blynyddoedd i ddod. 

 
Rydym yn gwybod bod cyllidebau'n heriol, ac y byddant yn parhau i fod yn heriol; felly, 
rydym yn blaenoriaethu ein gwaith i sicrhau ein bod yn parhau i gyflawni'n rhyngwladol 
gyda'r gwledydd a'r rhanbarthau hynny lle gellir cyflawni'r canlyniadau gorau i Gymru.   
 
Gall sefyllfaoedd byd-eang sy'n newid olygu bod ffocws ein gwaith a'n cyllid yn newid yn 
ystod y flwyddyn.  Ni allwn ragweld pryd, neu os, y gallai hyn ddigwydd, a byddwn yn 
ystyried unrhyw newidiadau o'r fath sy'n arwain at ailflaenoriaethu cyllid wrth iddynt godi.  

Tudalen y pecyn 32



4 

 

Defnyddir y dull hyblyg ac ymatebol hwn ar draws ein holl weithgareddau rhyngwladol, ac 
mae wedi golygu ein bod wedi gallu ymateb yn gadarnhaol i gyfleoedd annisgwyl i godi 
proffil Cymru wrth iddynt godi. 
 
O ran gofynion cyfranogiad ac ariannu partneriaid strategol sy'n gyfrifol am 
gyflawni'r Strategaeth Ryngwladol:  

o Cadarnhad o ba gamau a gymerwyd i gael gwybodaeth ariannol allweddol 
gan bartneriaid strategol wrth ddatblygu’r Gyllideb Ddrafft, a chyn ei chyhoeddi 
ar 19 Rhagfyr 2023; 

o Cynllun wrth gefn Llywodraeth Cymru os yw partneriaid strategol yn adrodd yn 
Ch1 nad yw'r Gyllideb Ddrafft ostyngol yn ddigonol i gyflawni eu cyfrifoldebau 
o dan y Strategaeth Ryngwladol. 

 
Rydym yn trafod â'n holl bartneriaid strategol un i un yn rheolaidd er mwyn deall eu 
cynlluniau a'u gwariant. Cyn cyhoeddi'r Gyllideb Ddrafft ym mis Rhagfyr, gwnaethom gwrdd 
â'r holl bartneriaid strategol i amlinellu blaenoriaethau Llywodraeth Cymru ac i ddechrau 
trafodaethau ynghylch sut y gallent gyfrannu at eu cyflawni, o bosibl mewn amgylchedd lle 
mae'r gyllideb gryn dipyn yn llai. Yn y cyfarfod hwn, trafodwyd yr heriau ariannol yr ydym ei 
gyd yn eu hwynebu. 
 
Rydym wedi gofyn i bartneriaid strategol gyflwyno eu cynigion drafft ar gyfer blwyddyn 
ariannol 2024–25. Byddwn yn gweithio ar draws y llywodraeth, a chyda'n partneriaid 
strategol, i barhau i gefnogi'r gwaith o gyflawni'r Strategaeth Ryngwladol. Rydym yn cyfarfod 
yn rheolaidd â'n partneriaid strategol i fonitro cynnydd a chynllunio ariannol, a byddwn yn 
parhau i wneud hynny dros y flwyddyn ariannol nesaf.  
 
Dadansoddiad o'r gwariant a gynlluniwyd ar gysylltiadau blaenoriaeth a nodir yn y 
Strategaeth Ryngwladol ar gyfer 2024–25 
 
Mae'r cysylltiadau rydym wedi'u datblygu gyda'n gwledydd a'n rhanbarthau â blaenoriaeth 
yn sail i'n holl waith rhyngwladol, o ddigwyddiadau ac ymweliadau hyd at sicrhau 
mewnfuddsoddiadau ac allforio ein nwyddau a'n gwasanaethau.   
 
Mae gwaith gyda'n cysylltiadau â blaenoriaeth yn cynnwys gwariant ar draws pob maes o 
dan Gysylltiadau Rhyngwladol, yn ogystal â'r adran ehangach ac ar draws y llywodraeth.  
Adlewyrchir hyn mewn gweithgareddau gwahanol a gynhelir, gan gynnwys, er enghraifft 
croesawu cynrychiolwyr o ranbarthau â blaenoriaeth yn Wythnos Tech Cymru, ymweliadau 
â rhanbarthau fel Gwlad y Basg a Silesia, ymweliadau i Gymru gan gynrychiolwyr a 
diplomyddion o wledydd eraill, a'r gwaith parhaus i ddatblygu cysylltiadau newydd pan fo 
hynny'n briodol.  
 

• Y rhesymeg dros ailenwi BEL Datblygu Rhyngwladol yn BEL Datblygu Cynaliadwy 
Rhyngwladol, gan gynnwys pa wahaniaeth y mae hyn wedi'i wneud i'r gwariant o 
dan y 
BEL hon. 

 
Y rhesymeg dros ailenwi BEL Datblygiad Rhyngwladol Boedd adlewyrchu gwaith Rhaglen 
Cymru ac Affrica yn fwy cywir o fewn y BEL hon. Mae hyn hefyd yn adlewyrchu uchelgais y 
Strategaeth Ryngwladol i sefydlu Cymru fel cenedl sy'n gyfrifol yn fyd-eang. 
 

• Dadansoddiadau cynhwysfawr o wariant a gynllunnir o dan BEL Datblygu 
Cynaliadwy 
Rhyngwladol. 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



5 

 

• Pam nad yw'r trosglwyddiad MEG i MEG o £350,000 o BEL Cysylltiadau 
Rhyngwladol i 
dalu costau Cymru ac Affrica yn ailymddangos fel trosglwyddiad sy'n dod i mewn 
ar Gyllideb Ddrafft 2024–25. 

 
Bydd BEL Datblygu Cynaliadwy Rhyngwladol yn ariannu'r gwaith canlynol yn 2024–25: 

o Maint Cymru/Plannu Coed yn Mbale – £450,000 
o Hub Cymru Affrica – £349,000 
o Grantiau Bach CGGC ar gyfer Cymru ac Affrica £210,000 
o DEC £22,000 
o Cynghrair Mbale yn Erbyn Tlodi (CAP) £12,500 
o Contract diogelu £6,500 
 

Ar gyfer 2024–25, mae'r £350,000 ar gyfer Cymru ac Affrica wedi'i gynnwys yn ffrwd BEL 
Datblygu Cynaliadwy Rhyngwladol yn y gyllideb ddrafft. Y Gweinidog Cyfiawnder 
Cymdeithasol fydd yn penderfynu ar y defnydd priodol o'r gyllideb.   
 

• Rhestr o apeliadau brys a gefnogwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru ym mlwyddyn 
gyllideb 2023–24, o ble y daeth yr arian hwn, a chynlluniau cyfredol ar gyfer 
cymorth yn ymwneud â gwrthdaro byd-eang yng Nghyllideb Ddrafft 2024–25. 

 
Nid yw'r Pwyllgor Argyfyngau Brys (DEC) wedi lansio apêl hyd yma ym mlwyddyn ariannol 
2023–24. Mae rhoddion blaenorol wedi cael eu gwneud naill ai o BEL Datblygu 
Rhyngwladol neu BEL Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol, drwy ddefnyddio tanwariant neu drwy 
ddefnyddio arian wrth gefn. Nid oes cyllideb wedi'i neilltuo ar gyfer ymateb i apeliadau brys. 
 
Bydd unrhyw gyllid yn y dyfodol yn cael ei ystyried fesul achos, gan weithio mewn 
partneriaeth â'r DEC i gefnogi ei apeliadau. 
 
Mae'r DEC yn gynghrair o 15 o asiantaethau cymorth a datblygu mawr sy'n dod at ei gilydd 
pan fydd argyfwng i godi arian ac wedyn ei ddosbarthu'n gyflym ac yn effeithlon. Mae 
ganddo hanes rhagorol o roi gwybod i gyhoedd y DU am argyfyngau byd-eang, a'r cymorth 
dyngarol sydd ei angen, yn ogystal â sefydlu ffyrdd hawdd o dderbyn rhoddion. Mae DEC 
yn cael effaith uniongyrchol, gan gael cymorth i bobl sydd ei angen yn gyflym ac yn 
effeithlon. 
 

• Gwybodaeth am ddigwyddiadau mawr/rhyngwladol, gan gynnwys dyraniadau 
cyllideb penodol ar gyfer 2023–24, a manylion unrhyw ddigwyddiadau a gynllunnir 
a'r gwariant cyfredol a gynllunnir ar gyfer 2024–25. 

 
Arweinir digwyddiadau mawr gan adran fwyaf priodol Llywodraeth Cymru, gyda chymorth 
Cysylltiadau Rhyngwladol, pan fo hynny'n briodol.  Er enghraifft, roedd Chwaraeon yn 
arwain y gwaith ar Gwpan y Byd FIFA, cystadleuaeth y dynion, ond roedd y gwaith ar 
Gwpan Rygbi'r Byd yn cael ei arwain ar y cyd gan Chwaraeon a'r Tîm Cysylltiadau 
Rhyngwladol yn Ffrainc.  Nid oes gan Gysylltiadau Rhyngwladol linell gyllideb ar wahân ar 
gyfer digwyddiadau mawr, ac roedd gwaith ar gyfer Cwpan Rygbi'r Byd diweddar yn Ffrainc 
yn dod o dan amcanion a chyllideb ehangach Blwyddyn Cymru yn Ffrainc. 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



Jeremy Miles AS/MS 
Gweinidog y Gymraeg ac Addysg  

Minister for Education and Welsh Language  
 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Jeremy.Miles@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Jeremy.Miles@gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA/JMEWL/3107/23 
 
Delyth Jewell AS 
Cadeirydd 
Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg,  
Chwaraeon a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol, 
Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
CF99 1SN 
 
SeneddDiwylliant@senedd.cymru  
 

26 Ionawr 2024 
 
Annwyl Delyth, 
 
Diolch am eich llythyr, dyddiedig 16 Ionawr, yn holi am ragor o wybodaeth yn dilyn fy sesiwn 
gyda chi fel Pwyllgor ar 11 Ionawr lle buom yn craffu ar y gyllideb ddrafft. Rydw i’n 
gwerthfawrogi eich amser, eich cyngor a’ch diddordeb yn ein gwaith wrth weithredu 
Cymraeg 2050: Miliwn o siaradwyr. 
 
Yn eich llythyr, rydych chi’n holi am ragor o wybodaeth am y Coleg Cymraeg Cenedlaethol 
a’r Ganolfan Dysgu Cymraeg Genedlaethol ac effaith bosibl toriadau i gyllidebau ar draws y 
Llywodraeth ar weithredu Cymraeg 2050. Rydym ni eisoes wedi dechrau casglu’r 
wybodaeth ac yn gobeithio gallu rhannu hynny gyda chi cyn diwedd mis Chwefror. 
 
Yn gywir, 
 

 
 
Jeremy Miles AS/MS 
Gweinidog y Gymraeg ac Addysg  

Minister for Education and Welsh Language  

Tudalen y pecyn 35

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Jeremy.Miles@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Jeremy.Miles@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddDiwylliant@senedd.cymru


Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy 
 
Dawn Bowden AS/MS 
Dirprwy Weinidog y Celfyddydau, Chwaraeon a Thwristiaeth  
Deputy Minister for Arts, Sport, and Tourism 
 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

  
Ein cyf/Our ref: MA/VG/3064/24 
 
 
Delyth Jewell AS  
Chair 
Culture, Communications, Welsh Language, Sport, and International Relations Committee 
 

29 January 2024 
  
Dear Delyth,  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to discuss the draft budget 2024-25 proposals for the 
Economy Main Expenditure Group at our evidence session on 17 January. Please find 
enclosed the further information as requested to inform your ongoing budget scrutiny.  
 
Prioritising spending to safeguard the national collections.  
 
My officials continue to work with Amgueddfa Cymru and the National Library of Wales to 
understand their long-term maintenance needs and any implications for the safety of the 
national collections. Where additional funding becomes available, I am doing all I can to 
support these organisations. For example, we are currently considering requests from 
Amgueddfa Cymru for additional funding to be spent this financial year on capital projects 
and items, some of which will help address their long-term maintenance issues. I am also 
providing the National Library with an additional £1.5m across 2023/24 and 2024/25 to help 
with the redevelopment of one of its storage spaces. This is on top of their grant in aid and 
the additional decarbonisation funding being given to both organisations.  
 
I acknowledge the challenges that Amgueddfa Cymru and the National Library are facing in 
maintaining a historic estate and therefore safeguard the collections in its care. I will 
continue to review some of our current spending commitments, such as for the Museum of 
North Wales. 
 
Remit letters and Culture Strategy  
 
I remain confident that I can publish strategic priorities for culture by the end of the year. 
Officials are currently reviewing the content of the draft strategy given the new budgetary 
context and considering this in consultation with the culture strategy Steering Group.  
I will balance the need to provide strategic direction and to maintain the long-term vision and 
ambitions contained in the draft strategy with a pragmatic approach to actions in support of 
delivering these ambitions that might be taken forward in the short-term.  

Tudalen y pecyn 36

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales


 
As I said to the Committee, I will review Remit Letters in light of the Budget Settlement.  
 
Welsh Government Redundancies in arm’s length bodies (ALBs) 
 
Amgueddfa Cymru, the Arts Council of Wales, the National Library of Wales and the Royal 
Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Wales are currently consulting 
their staff on proposed voluntary redundancy schemes scheduled to conclude this financial 
year. My officials are working closely and at pace with colleagues at each of these 
organisations and I am in the process of exploring whether I can make additional funding 
available this financial year to help with the costs of these redundancy schemes. Until the 
work underway this financial year has been completed, it is not possible for our Culture 
ALBs to confirm whether further redundancy schemes will be necessary next financial year. 
In terms of Sport Wales, it is not currently proposing to run a redundancy scheme. At 
present, we do not have additional funding available to support redundancy schemes in 
2024/25.  
 
National Contemporary Art Gallery – Anchor site 
 
Officials have provided assurance that we will be in a position to take decisions in March 
2024, following the completion of the assessment process. Resources will then be made 
available to support the development of a business case for the site selected during 
the2024-25 financial year.  
 
The three stages of the development of the business case will consider design and cost 
options, making clearer the level of investment that will be required to deliver an anchor 
gallery. An investment decision would then need to be made at that time based on 
affordability and wider priorities. Any decisions relating to the level of investment required, 
will need to be sensitive to the financial climate and the recent reductions to programme 
budgets supporting the sector. 
 
Entrance fees to attractions currently free  
 
Like all our Cultural arm’s length bodies, Amgueddfa Cymru is exploring all available 
fundraising opportunities and options for further income generation. This includes exploring 
a range of potential future charging options, only one of which is charging for entry to some 
or all its museums in the longer term. I have had an initial conversation with Amgueddfa 
Cymru’s Chair and Chief Executive about this during my most recent biannual meeting with 
them where their intention to consider a variety of potential options was discussed. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

  
Vaughan Gething AS/MS   
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy 
 

Dawn Bowden AS/MS 
Dirprwy Weinidog y Celfyddydau, Chwaraeon a 
Thwristiaeth Deputy Minister for Arts, Sport and 
Tourism 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



WRU Independent Review Response January 2024 

 Recommendation 
summary 

Recommendation Initial WRU Board viewpoint on 
recommendation 

Target date for 
implementation  

1 Appoint an 
oversight body 

a. The WRU should appoint an external oversight group of 
no fewer than 3 people.  At least one should be 
nominated by an outside body and at least one 
experienced in people management or organisational 
culture. 

We will appoint this oversight group.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 31 January 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  b. For the next 3 years the WRU should report quarterly to 
this group, setting out its goals, actions taken to meet 
them and how success is measured.  We hope that 
substantial progress will be made in the first year but 
recommend that the body stays in place for 3 years so it 
can oversee the constitutional review and changes. 

We will report quarterly to this external 
oversight group (EOG)  
 

Week of 18 January 2024 
and each calendar 
quarter thereafter  
 

  c. The group’s remit should be to consider steps by the 
WRU to implement the recommendations in this report 
and to create an inclusive environment for staff and for 
all those involved in rugby in Wales. 

We will agree terms of reference for the 
EOG and include this in the remit 

31 January 2024 

2 Continue reform of 
the Board 

a. The WRU is a national sporting organisation which is also 
a large corporate body.  Its Board must be an efficient 
body with clear responsibilities for the governance of all 
aspects of the WRU and should not be seen as just 
representing the community clubs.  The executive 
should report to the Board on all aspects of the WRU’s 
work. 

We agree – the full new Board has been 
announced and is  in place as at 1 
January 2024.  The Executive does 
report to the Board on all aspects of its 
work.  
We will ensure the Executive reports on 
all aspects of work; concisely and 
effectively.  

14 January 2024 

  b. The size of the Board should be further reduced to 10 by 
lowering the number of Council representatives, elected 
or appointed, to 2 from currently 4.  The changes made 
at the March 2023 EGM should be given time to take 

The governance changes which were set 
out at the EGM on 26 March have been 
implemented within the specified time 
period with the number of Council 

To be discussed – 31 
December 2025 

T
udalen y pecyn 38

E
item

 4.2



effect before further reform of the Board, so this change 
need not be immediate but be developed during the 3 
years in which the oversight body operates.   

Members elected to the Board reduced 
to 4.  The new Board is in place as of 1 
January 2024.  
We will commission the governance 
review after there has been a period of 
operation of the new Board and work 
with Member Clubs and Council to 
discuss these recommendations in the 
light of this review. 
 

  c. We recommend that within two years the WRU 
commissions an external report on governance. That 
report should consider how the March 2023 reforms are 
operating and how committees can be streamlined to 
avoid duplication (along with other relevant matters). 

 
We will commission an external report 
and review our sub-committees and 
establish the necessary number to 
ensure efficiency and effectiveness in 
the relevant subject areas. 
 
The Board Committees have been 
streamlined and in addition to the 
Professional Rugby Board ( PRB) and 
Community Rugby Board (CRB)  will 
include a Finance Audit and Risk 
committee, and a  People, Culture and 
Governance committee  
 

31 December 2025 

  d. Implement a “fit and proper person” test for 
Council/Board members and candidates for the 
Council/Board. 

 
Board members, elected or appointed, should be able to 
show that their membership of the Board would not 
undermine the reputation of the WRU or make it harder 
for the WRU to promote rugby in Wales. 

A fit and proper person test was 
introduced for appointments to the 
Board made over the last 6 months.  It 
was also used for Council elections that 
took place in 2023.. 
 

31 March 2024 
 

T
udalen y pecyn 39



 
The test should consider honesty, integrity, public 
statements, experience, any breaches of club or WRU 
standards, and commitment to inclusion of all in the 
sport of rugby (for example, a commitment to the 
standards set out by World Rugby). 

We will include a positive inclusion 
statement in all Council and Board 
member recruitment going forwards. 
 
 
 

  e. There should always be a current strategic plan for key 
areas of the sport, shared with relevant managers and 
(subject to competitor knowledge) published.  This 
should include professional rugby, community rugby, 
men’s rugby, women’s and girls’ rugby, rugby for those 
with disabilities, and broadening inclusion.  All plans 
must be approved by the Board.  Staff need to 
understand what they are asked to deliver. 

We commit to this and to make this 
public. Our new strategic plan 
conversations have already started  and 
will be completed with the support of 
stakeholders. This plan will be reviewed 
at least annually going forwards. 
 
We will produce a WRU Group Strategic 
Plan ready to be published by 30 June 
2024. 
 

30 June 2024 
 

  f. Set up a structured system for reporting to the Board 
which includes: 

i. Written reports to the Board from the executive 
at least quarterly and always in good time prior 
to each Board meeting. 

ii. Papers to the Board should identify relevant 
options and include clear decision-making 
principles or criteria. 

iii. Each report should include KPIs for individual 
members of the executive and departments of 
the WRU which should be monitored and 
appraised. 

We commit to ensuring that the reports 
available to the Board are clear, concise 
and contain the relevant amount of 
information to inform, discuss or make 
decisions as appropriate. We commit to 
ensuring that all Executive KPIs are 
shared and monitored once they have 
been thoroughly developed to align 
with our new strategy. The KPIs will 
cover all aspects of WRU performance, 
including People, Operational 
Performance, Finance, Programme 
Delivery, Risk and Assurance.  
 

31 March 2024 
Executive Board KPIs to 
initially be short term and 
then from 30 June 2024 
in line with new Group 
Strategy 

  g. The administration of the Board should be streamlined: We have already hired some immediate 
support and we commit to ensuring the 

14 January 2024 
 

T
udalen y pecyn 40



i. A dedicated support service should be provided to 
help the Chair, chairs of committees and Board 
members with their roles. 

 

resources are available to enable us to 
deliver on this element 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  ii. Each Board member should participate in a skills 
review, have a skills matrix drawn up on appointment 
and be encouraged to undertake appropriate 
development according to needs identified on their 
skills matrix. 

A skills and experience review of the 
existing Board was carried out prior to 
the recruitment of the new Board 
members; this will be populated further 
with the skills of the new Board 
members and refreshed every year. 
 

31 March 2024 
 

  iii. Everyone appointed to the Board should be offered 
induction training on (i) their duties as a director; (ii) 
good practice in governance; (iii) equality, diversity 
and inclusion; (iv) representing the WRU; and (v) the 
current state of Welsh rugby and the WRU’s strategic 
plans. 

 

Induction training has already been 
discussed by the Board and a new 
comprehensive induction programme 
has already commenced. We will take 
on board recommendations from 
throughout this report and integrate 
relevant points into the induction 
process. We commit that all Board and 
Council Members will receive a detailed 
induction and the development training 
as identified in the recommendations. 
 

31 March 2024 
 
 

  iv. The role of executive staff attending the Board should 
be clarified.  

 

Agreed, this has been done. 
 

14 January 2024  
 

  v. Clarify the fiduciary role of Board members to oversee 

all the activities of the company, uphold its values and 

respect one another’s skills and experience. 

Agreed, this has been a key 
consideration of the recruitment 
process for the new Board. The Board 
has already discussed this and will 
spend some time in early 2024 
discussing this in practice 

14 January  

T
udalen y pecyn 41



 

3 Council a. The Council is the key representative body, the forum 

through which member clubs engage in the WRU.  It 

currently comprises 14 Members elected from the nine 

Districts and 5 nationally elected Members.  

Noted n/a 

  b. Article 47 of the Articles of Association reads: “The 

Council shall formulate the strategy for the community 

game in Wales, such strategy to be submitted to and 

agreed with the Board of Directors and the Council shall 

thereafter oversee the execution of that strategy.  The 

responsibilities of the Council from time to time shall be 

set by the Board of Directors following consultation with 

the Council.” 

Noted n/a 

  c. The Council currently elects 8 of its Members to the 

Board.  Following the March EGM, it may only elect 4 of 

its Members to the Board and may have up to 6 

Members appointed by the Board.  It will then have a 

maximum 25 Members.  

Noted n/a 

  d. The Board has a sub-committee, the Community Rugby 

Board, which also comprises the 14 Members elected 

from the nine Districts and the 5 nationally elected 

Members, plus a maximum 2 Executive Board members. 

“It is responsible for managing and delivering the 

execution of the strategy for community rugby as set by 

the WRU Council and approved by the WRU’s Board 

from time to time.” (WRU website) 

Noted n/a 

  e. In view of the duplication of Members between 

Council and Community Game Board, the shared 

responsibility for establishing the strategy for 

community rugby, seeking Board approval and then 

delivering the approved strategy, the constitutional 

This will require the consent of member 
clubs and Council as this structure is 
embedded in our Articles.  We will 
consult on these recommendations with 
these bodies, understand in more detail 

To be discussed – 31 
December 2025 

T
udalen y pecyn 42



structure should be streamlined and simplified in a 

single entity.  It could perhaps be described as the 

Community Council.  It should be expanded to include a 

wider group of stakeholders.  

the concerns behind the current 
structure and develop a plan. 

  f. To fulfil this role the Community Council should be 

drawn from a broader base of those involved in rugby in 

Wales:  

i. Membership of the Community Council should be a 
maximum 16 (Currently we understand the Council 
has 19 members: 5 National Council members and 14 
District Council members – 2 each from Districts A – E 
and 1 each from F, G, H and J.  Following the EGM in 
March 2023 the Board may appoint up to 6 Council 
members.): 9 elected from districts, 1 elected 
nationally and 6 representing other rugby community 
interests, as set out below. 

ii. The six new places on the Community Council 

should be for people representing (1) schools rugby; 

(2) rugby in colleges and universities; (3) community 

rugby players (The WRU will need to consult and draw 

up a definition.  We recommend a broad definition.  

One option is election by captains of teams that play 

in leagues in Wales other than the regional sides in 

the United Rugby Championship.  However, the exact 

approach we leave to the WRU.); (4) women’s and 

girls’ rugby (5) rugby for players with a disability and 

(6) officials.  Where possible these should be elected 

but it might be difficult to identify an electorate and 

arrange elections at a reasonable cost in all these 

areas.  If so, the WRU should run a competitive 

Noted.  Again, the constitution of the 
current Council is included in our 
Articles so we will consult with Council 
and we will need the support of 
member clubs to implement this.  The 
Articles post-EGM March 2023 provide 
Board with the ability to appoint six 
additional Council Members, the 
intention being that this would broaden 
the base of representation.  The Articles 
do not specify who these need to be, so 
there is discretion for the Board. There 
would need to a change in the Articles 
to reduce the number of Council 
Members. 
 
We will consult with clubs and council 
on these proposals whilst understanding 
in more detail the concerns from the 
Independent Review to develop a plan. 

To be discussed – 31 
December 2025 

T
udalen y pecyn 43



appointment process according to a person 

specification it should draw up. 

iii. Members of the Community Council should be limited 

to 3 consecutive terms of 3 years (with the possibility 

of re-election after one fallow period). 

iv. The individual elected nationally should chair the 

Community Council and have a seat on the Board.  

The other Board member should be elected by the 

Community Council.  

  g. We recommend above that the Board should 

approve and maintain the strategy for all areas of the 

game, including the community game.  The Community 

Council should be a representative, not a management, 

body and should not direct management or set strategies 

or budgets. 

Noted. The Board does have 
responsibility for all aspects of the 
game. We will consult with clubs and 
council on these proposals whilst 
understanding in more detail the 
concerns from the Independent Review 
to develop a plan. 

To be discussed – 31 
December 2025 

  h. Membership of the Community Council should 

involve at least induction training on representing the 

WRU, its inclusion and diversity policies, its current 

strategic plans and their implementation.  

We agree. We commit to ensuring that 
Council Members receive thorough 
induction training relevant to their role 
and representing the WRU. We will use 
the recommendations in this report to 
improve the induction programme.  

31 March 2024 

  i. Clubs should not see these changes as a diminution of 

their role.  They will continue to elect or appoint Board 

members, attend and vote at the Annual General 

Meeting and have a representative forum in the 

Community Council. 

Noted.  Clubs are our members, and we 
will consider what further 
communication and reporting 
mechanisms we can put in place to 
assist with any changes. 

N/A 

  The recommended transformation of Council and of the 
Community Game Board would be fundamental to 
governance, requiring amendment to the Articles.  It should 
thus be considered within the external report on 
governance, recommended in paragraph 2(c) above, and 

Noted; we will include this within the 
terms of reference and consult with 
member clubs on this. 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 44



would probably accelerate that report’s commissioning 
within the next two years. 

4 Take steps to 
become more 
transparent 

a. Draw up a transparency policy setting out when the 
WRU will give information to the public, the rugby 
community and employees based on the principle of 
sharing as much as possible.  The primary reasons for 
withholding information should be (i) competitor 
knowledge; and (ii) legal obligations. 

We agree. Over the next 6 months the 
WRU will engage with other bodies and 
institutions to establish best practice in 
this area and bring a policy, statement 
or framework proposal forward to the 
Board. 
 
 
 

30 June 2024 
 
 
 
 

  b. Publish the privileges associated with membership of 
the Board and Council, and for senior staff (distinct from, 
for example, attending matches as a host in a working 
role). The grounds for reduction or removal should also 
be set out. 

We agree.  A review of this will be 
carried out and published shortly for 
transparency. 
 

31 January 2024 

  c. When terminating employment, the WRU should only 
use non-disclosure agreements (NDAs) for an express 
purpose, not as a matter of course.  This does not 
preclude the use of confidentiality clauses about the 
terms of a settlement agreement. 

We agree. Settlement Agreements will 
continue to be used only on a case-by-
case basis and not as a matter of course. 
 

Immediate – 14 January 
 

  d. When reports are commissioned about general matters 
(rather than specific employees) they should be 
published unless there is a particular and agreed reason 
not to do so.  If publication is not appropriate, the 
authors should be asked to write a brief summary of the 
issues, and their conclusions, for publication The WRU 
would have been in a better place at the start of 2023 
had it been known that it had commissioned reports 
into women’s national rugby, governance, and equality, 
diversity and inclusion which recommended significant 
change. 

 

We agree that where appropriate either 
a summary disclosure or full disclosure 
of any report commissioned should be 
shared. This is something we will also 
consider within the recommendation 
regarding a transparency policy (as per 
recommendation 4(a)). 
 
 
 
 
 

Immediate – 14 January 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen y pecyn 45



Debate about the organisation and funding of Welsh 
rugby should be actively encouraged and the WRU 
should seek to share information to engage people’s 
productive participation in a structured, not speculative, 
way.  Underlying this is greater acceptance of 
constructive criticism with a view to improvement.  A 
number of people commented on the WRU seeking to 
control the rugby environment too much. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
We agree and consider this a part of the 
strategy process that has just 
commenced. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30 June 2024 

5  Align the WRU clearly and publicly with inclusion and 
diversity, demonstrating visible and vocal leadership on 
equality, diversity and inclusion.  The WRU’s commitment to 
inclusion and its opposition to abusive behaviour, exclusion 
and discrimination need to be unambiguous. 

 

We commit to doing this authentically 
and openly.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30 June 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  a. Amend the WRU’s statement of values to include one 
related to diversity and inclusion. 

A values review will be a part of the 
strategy exercise and we will prioritise 
the identification and roll out of our 
values as a part of the output of the 
strategy. 
 

30 June 2024 

  b. Give greater publicity to women’s rugby and rugby for 
people with disabilities. 

Our EDI plan is aligned with this, we 

agree we need to invest more into this 

area. 

 

30 Sept 2024  
 

T
udalen y pecyn 46



  c. Respond robustly to discrimination and hate crime in 
stadia and online. 

In line with our zero tolerance approach 

to discrimination, we agree that we 

need to improve our reporting 

mechanisms and ensure our process for 

dealing with reports is efficient and 

effective. 

We will further improve on the stadium 

reporting system by regularly publicising 

anti-racism and discrimination messages 

on the concourses and stadium TV 

systems and emphasise the need to 

report this type of behaviour to  

Principality Stadium personnel on event 

days. 

 

31 March 2024 
 
 

  d. Express clearly and publicly the WRU’s commitment to 
the inclusion of all members of Welsh society both in 
rugby and in its own staff group. 

We will make our clear and 
unambiguous statement public as a part 
of our strategy. 
 

30 June 2024 
 

  e. Have a clear equality, diversity and inclusion strategy 
underpinned by a delivery plan. 

 

The WRU’s EDI policy has been revisited 
over recent months and approved by 
the Board. Women’s rugby is at the 
heart of this document. We agree that 
we need to work harder and move more 
quickly on our Inclusion delivery plan.   
We will develop a clear EDI delivery plan 
to underpin our strategy. 

30 June 2024 for EDI Plan 
- in line with strategy  
 
30 September for EDI 
Delivery Plan 

  f. Work collaboratively with the EHRC, should the EHRC 
take any steps in relation to WRU. 

We commit to working with the EHRC. TBC once initial scope and 
process is agreed with 
EHRC.  

T
udalen y pecyn 47



6 Financial support 
to clubs 

Reform financial support to clubs with a view to achieving 
key goals reflecting the WRU’s strategy for the community 
game.  These should include all facilities for women and girls 
(including training and club house facilities), steps to 
broaden access to rugby for all communities, proper 
disciplinary policies and procedures in clubs for responding 
to unacceptable behaviour (including discriminatory 
behaviour) off the pitch. 

We have recently rolled out a suite of 
services under the heading WRU Dysgu 
which are learning tools and tips for 
clubs to make their club houses and 
facilities welcoming to all sectors of 
society.  How to take appropriate action 
should unacceptable behaviour be 
identified or witnessed is an element of 
this service.  
 
Dysgu is a re-education programme 
where we will be expecting all clubs to 
have an EDI plan by the end of 2024. 
 
A working group has been established 
to look at how investment is distributed. 
 
We have rewritten the payment of 
players (Integrity Statement) and 
reviewed our approach and policy in 
relation to our core grant. 
 
A self-assessment tool has been 
approved for clubs. The club 
development team will guide clubs in 
Wales through this process in 2024. 
Attached to this are supportive tools 
which will support the discipline 
procedures to enable clubs to address 
all behaviour which falls short of 
acceptable standards. 
 

Already started; quarterly 
reviews 
Strategy agreed 30 June 
2024 
Implementation 30 June 
2025 

T
udalen y pecyn 48



Aim to align all funding to safe, inclusive 
and compliant clubs across the country. 
 
We agree that we need to do more in 
this space, linking financial support for 
clubs to our strategic aims around safe, 
inclusive, welcoming clubhouses. We 
will need our clubs support to move 
forward with changes to funding to 
support our ambitions. We will carry out 
a review of how we deliver support to 
our clubs and what the appropriate 
linking mechanism is as a part of our 
strategy process.     

7 Invest in the 
women’s and girls’ 
game: 
 

a. Analyse the expenditure on the women’s and girls’ game 
in light of  
(i) income and expenditure of other unions;  
(ii) growing sponsorship, broadcast revenue and 

attendances at women’s matches; and 
(iii) the need to invest to develop the game 
so that funding for women and girls is benchmarked 
and expressly managed based on data.  Spending 
should be in line with other unions and with spending 
on men and boys and appropriate to a growth and 
investment phase.   
This analysis will require decisions about allocating 
income (For example how does one allocate general 
sponsorship?  The sponsor will want the exposure from 
large TV audiences currently obtained by the men’s first 
team.  That will affect how much they pay.  However 
sponsors will pay nothing to an organisation the public 
sees as excluding groups in society.)  and expenditure 
and is not intended to be an exact exercise but to 

We have made progress in this area but 
we know more needs to be done. We 
commit to the recommendations to 
support further development. We will 
look at areas that require investment 
and ensure we align that with identified 
sponsorship opportunities. We will 
review our spending and ensure that it 
is comparable with other competitors 
and our own comparable investment in 
the men’s and boys’ game, appropriate 
to growth. 
 
Detailed work has been done on 
establishing a strategy for women’s and 
girls’ rugby and this now needs to be 
integrated into the overall WRU 
strategy.  This will be published by not 
later than 30 June 24.  The appointment 

30 June 2024 to publish 
strategy and an update 
on all other matters 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen y pecyn 49



inform decisions.  The analysis should include support 
for the community game as well as player development 
and national squads. 

of a board member who has expertise in 
the women’s game, Amanda Bennett is 
a key development.  Amanda has played 
a key part in the development of the 
strategy to date as a member of the 
Women’s Strategy Group. The WRU has 
increased its investment in women’s 
rugby considerably over the last two 
years both in the community and at the 
top of the performance pyramid.  An 
assessment of our competitors’ spend 
and our own individual needs were 
central planks to the focus of this 
additional investment.  The WRU’s 
partnership with Vodafone is an 
excellent example of a targeted 
approach, regarding sponsorship 
investment, improving the 
opportunities available in the girls’ and 
women’s game at all levels. 
 
Initial professional contracts 
commenced on 1 January 22 with the 
total number and the quantum of the 
contracts increasing for the second 
round based on what our immediate 
rivals were paying and the desire to 
raise performance levels by giving the 
women’s squad coaches greater access 
to their players.  There are currently 31 
contracted players with 32 budgeted for. 
In addition, there are 2 Hybrid contracts 
with GB7s. For WXV there were also 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen y pecyn 50



Fixed Term (FT) contracts, and the 
intention is to have 3 FT contracts for 
the Six Nations in 2024.   

  b. Keep the salary for professional female players at a level 
competitive to other careers and other nations and 
ensure the number of contracts is sufficient to support 
full national teams. 

The level of payment and the number of 
players contracted will be kept 
constantly under review to ensure that 
it is competitive, fair and in line with 
other careers.  It should be noted that 
the senior squad has risen to 6 in the 
world rankings over the last two years 
and that immediately beneath that level 
Wales will have two teams taking part in 
the Celtic Challenge with U20 and U18 
teams also being established in the past 
18 months too. 

30 June 2024 – subject to 
an annual review -  

  c. Embed a player pathway for women and girls by 
completing development of the hubs offering support to 
players in Wales and by continuing outreach support to 
players at clubs in other nations.  The specific approach 
might change but the WRU should continue to provide 
professional staff to support the pathway in women’s 
rugby. 

Further down the player pathway 3 
player development centres have been 
established in East Wales, West Wales 
and in North Wales supported by player 
hubs.  A Women’s Pathway Physical 
Development Lead has been appointed 
who will oversee, all pathways' 
programmes and develop a curriculum 
for the physical development of our 
female pathway players. This position is 
seen as critical to the evolution of the 
Women’s Pathway programme and 
underpins both our performance and 
injury prevention strategies  
 
We will increase investment in our 
women and girl’s pathways going 
forwards 

30 June 2024 – subject to 
an annual review 

T
udalen y pecyn 51



  d. Ensure the women’s team has (as a minimum) current 
levels of support staff and access to sufficient gym time 
with required equipment.  If sharing resources with 
men, the division of time should be made clear. 

The management team which supports 
the Senior Women’s programmes, is 
consistent with that of our competitors 
in terms of number, quality and 
experience of staff.  The men’s and 
women’s senior team managers meet 
regularly to discuss utilisation of the 
NCE facilities.  If there are any 
queries/issues these are brought to the 
attention of the PD to ensure 
performance and equity is at the heart 
of decision making. 

Already in place – report 
14 January 2024 
 

  e. Develop a maternity strategy for professional, or soon to 
be professional, players.  This might involve additional 
funding to cover maternity and advice on return to 
work. 

The maternity policy for our players was 
included in their contracts issued in 
January 2023 with all players entitled to 
the same benefits as other employees 
of the WRU. 
 
We will consult with our women players 
on the current maternity policy and 
support and make appropriate 
adaptations to support their needs 
where possible. 
   

Already in place 
 

8  Continue to 
improve 
employment 
practices 

a. Regularly measure staff and player experience, 
separately considering players, coaching/ managing staff 
and administrative staff.  A range of approaches should 
be used to include individual interviews and anonymous 
online surveys. 

Players, coaches and support staff have 
completed two surveys over the past 18 
months with year-on-year analysis being 
monitored.  All data is collected 
anonymously and discussed across a 
range of groups. 
 

Already in place 
Review 30 September 
2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen y pecyn 52



We will consult with players to 
understand how best to feedback on 
player experience 
We will consider the use of other 
approaches in additional to anonymous 
surveys to gain feedback on 
employment practices. 
 

 

  b. Expand appraisals for senior staff to include 360-degree 
feedback - a structured approach to listening to those at 
and below their level of management - from people not 
chosen by the manager.  Managers should be helped to 
a sense of how they are perceived by others. 

 KPIs for senior staff are currently being 
used.  A Senior Leadership Group (SLG) 
was introduced in 2023 to improve 
communication and inter-departmental 
working throughout the organisation.   
 
We will implement 360 appraisals for all 
Executive and Senior Managers  
 

30 September 2024 
 

  c. Offer mentoring and reverse mentoring.  Each will best 
be used for limited groups and defined periods given the 
time commitment of proper mentoring. 

We recognise that a new systemic offer 
needs to be created across the whole 
WRU. 
 
 

30 June 2025 
 

  d. Include as KPIs for senior staff to be assessed in 
performance reviews (1) co-operation with managers at 
an equivalent level; (2) breaking down departmental 
barriers/ ‘silos’; (3) adopting a collegiate management 
style towards junior colleagues. 

We will include these as KPIs in the next 
iteration of our assessment process. 
 
 

30 September 2024 
 

  e. Annual training in equality, diversity and inclusion should 
take place for all staff.  This should be as broad as 
possible so it is delivered in different ways and different 
places.  There are more engaging approaches than an 
annual zoom lecture.  

Annual training was undertaken in 2021 
and modular training offered to Board, 
Council and Exec in 2022. 
2023 has seen EDI training made 
available to all staff with Show Racism 
The Red Card responsible for providing 

30 September 2024 
delivery  
  

T
udalen y pecyn 53



the training as part of a Welsh 
Government scheme.  Additional 
training is planned for next year.  
 
 

  f. Adopt a Speak Up approach, with systems to encourage 
communication and appoint a member of the executive 
to implement this and a Board member to oversee 
communication within the organisation. 

We have already implemented our 
“Have a Voice” campaign led by our 
Director of People, Lydia Stirling; at 
Board level this will be overseen by our 
People, Culture and Governance 
Committee  that is chaired by Alison 
Thorne.      
 
 

30 June 2024  
 
 

  g. Designate someone responsible for managing the 
culture at the National Centre of Excellence.  The 
success criteria should be to make the NCE more 
inclusive and facilitate frictionless sharing of facilities. 

 

We take note of the comments 
regarding the NCE and are committed to 
making the necessary changes to 
improve the environment to ensure all 
staff and visitors have the experience 
they should expect.  The Executive 
Director of Rugby, Nigel Walker, will be 
charged with improving the culture and 
will be measured on action taken.   

 
Immediate – Nigel Walker 
appointed 

  a. Implement a zero-tolerance approach to language which 
excludes others from work or sport.  By zero tolerance 
we do not mean that people must always be dismissed 
for exclusionary language but that it must always be 
reported, recorded and dealt with according to an 
express policy.  If ‘banter’ is defined as making a 
comment which breaks social taboos, and waiting for 
nervous laughter, staff should be told it is not 
appropriate for the workplace. 

We recognise there is more to do to 
embed our zero tolerance approach and 
we are reviewing our policies to make 
sure that they encourage people to 
come forward and report any 
exclusionary language.  
 
We will review our policies and 
statement of intent on EDI to ensure 

In place and ongoing  

T
udalen y pecyn 54



that it is clear of a zero tolerance 
approach. 
 
We will continue annual EDI training. 
 
We will continue to find ways to support 
reporting poor behaviour. 

  i. Ensure each team manager has as part of their role an 
objective of listening to concerns and helping 
communication.  The approach is likely to include 360-
degree appraisal and communicating to WRU necessary 
changes to manage stress, relationships, group and 
personal concerns. 

We will embed this in guidance for WRU 
employees in the next appraisal and 
development round. 

30 September 2024 

  j. Arrange for someone independent of the WRU to sit in 
on final interviews for Board members, the Chair and 
Chief Executive and any members of the Community 
Council who are appointed (see above), reporting in 
writing to the Board on whether the appointment 
followed good practice and the stated process.  This 
should not be an audit or lead to a detailed report but a 
simple conclusion.  

An independent was part of the 
appointment panel for all Board 
(including CEO) appointments made in 
the last 6 months.  We are committed to 
continue with this practice.  
 

Already in place – 14 
January 2024 
 

9  Disability Continue to work with disability sports bodies, according to 
a published strategy. 
 

The WRU has extensive links with a 
range of disability groups and has 
attracted major events to the 
Principality Stadium, such as the 
European Wheelchair Rugby 
Championship in 2023. 
 
The WRU commits to developing a 
strategy, in consultation with Sport 
Wales, to ensure maximum impact in 
this area. 
 

30 June 2024 as a part of 
our strategy 

T
udalen y pecyn 55



WRU will continue to deliver against the 
Insport Gold Strategy and support the 
DSW strategy. 
 
 

 

 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 56



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 57

Eitem 7Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad: sesiwn dystiolaeth gydag Undeb Rygbi Cymru (1)
	Nodyn cyngor cyfreithiol: Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad
	Tystiolaeth gan yr Uned Rygbu Cymru: Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad (Saesneg yn unig)
	Tystiolaeth gan Six Nations Rugby Limited: Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad (Saesneg yn unig)
	Tystiolaeth gan y Gymdeithas Darlledwyr Masnachol a Gwasanaethau Ar Alw (COBA): Hawliau darlledu rygbi'r Chwe Gwlad (Saesneg yn unig)

	4.1 Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25
	Ymateb gan y Prif Weinidog: Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25 - 25 Ionawr 2024
	Ymateb gan Gweinidog y Gymraeg ac Addysg: Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25 - 25 Ionawr 2024
	Ymateb gan Weinidog yr Economi a Dirprwy Weinidog y Celfyddydau, Chwaraeon a Thwristiaeth - 29 Ionawr 2024 (Saesneg yn unig)

	4.2 Cyhuddiadau yn ymwneud ag Undeb Rygbi Cymru
	7 Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25: trafod yr adroddiad drafft



